
City Council Agenda                  July 25, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  
 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

MONDAY, JULY 25, 2016 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Matt Beekman  
 
ROLL CALL:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
    Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 
    Councilmember Jill Silva 
    Councilmember George Carr 
    Councilmember Harold Hill 
    
FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
 
INVOCATION:  Hughson Ministerial Association   

 

 
1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 
Members of the audience may address the City Council on any item of interest to the public 
pertaining to the City and may step to the podium, state their name and city of residence for the 
record (requirement of name and city of residence is optional) and make their presentation. 
Please limit presentations to five minutes. Since the City Council cannot take action on matters 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

Due to construction, the meeting will 
be adjourned to the  

 SENIOR CITIZENS CENTER 
2307 Fourth Street, Hughson, CA 

 
 

RULES FOR ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL 
 
Members of the audience who wish to address the City Council are requested to complete one of 
the forms located on the table at the entrance of the Council Chambers and submit it to the City 
Clerk. Filling out the card is voluntary.  
 



City Council Agenda                  July 25, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

not on the agenda, unless the action is authorized by Section 54954.2 of the Government Code, 
items of concern, which are not urgent in nature can be resolved more expeditiously by 
completing and submitting to the City Clerk a “Citizen Request Form” which may be obtained 
from the City Clerk. 
  
2. PRESENTATIONS:    
 

2.1: Present MADD California Hero Award to Stanislaus County Sheriff’s 
Department – Hughson Police Services for their contribution to MADD’s 
Mission: To End Drunk Driving, Help Fight Drugged Driving, Support The 
Victims of These Violent Crimes And Prevent Underage Drinking.   

    
3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
All items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted upon by a single action of the 
City Council unless otherwise requested by an individual Councilmember for special 
consideration.  Otherwise, the recommendation of staff will be accepted and acted upon 
by roll call vote. 
 

3.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 11, 2016. 
 
3.2: Approve the Warrants Register.  

 
3.3: Approve Designating Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young as the Voting 

Delegate for the League of California Cities Annual Conference on 
October 5 - October 7, 2016 in Long Beach, California. 

 
3.4: Waive the Second Reading and Adopt the 2016 Engineering and Traffic 

Survey (ETS), Ordinance No. 2016-06, Amending Section 10.40.020 – 
Speed Limits: Exceptions. 

 
3.5: Waive the Second Reading and Adopt Ordinance 2016-07, Amending the 

Residency Requirements of the Hughson Parks and Recreation 
Commission and Adding Arts and Entertainment Matters to the Powers 
and Duties of the Existing Hughson Parks and Recreation Commission.  

 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:   
 

4.1: Approval to Adopt Resolution No. 2016-24, Adopting Addendum #2 to the 
Negative Declaration for the City of Hughson Well No. 7 Replacement 
Project. 

 
4.2: Approval to Award the Request for Proposals for Reuse of City Property 

Located on Leedom Road (Lower Ponds) Near the Waste Water 
Treatment Facility to Mid Valley Nut Company and Related Actions.   

 



City Council Agenda                  July 25, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS:  

 
6.1: Accept the Donation of a Park Bench by Private Citizens for the Hughson 

Family Resource Center. 
 
6.2: Approve the contract with Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. for Street 

Sweeping Services throughout the City of Hughson. 
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE:  
 

7.1: Parks Recreation Commission Minutes for July 12, 2016.  
     
8. COMMENTS: 
 

8.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 
City Manager:       
 
City Clerk: 
 
Community Development Director: 
  
Director of Finance: 
 
Police Services:  
   
City Attorney: 
 

8.2: Council Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 

8.3: Mayor’s Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
  
 9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:    
 

9.1: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 
             (Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) 
               Name of Case: David Chase v. San Joaquin Valley Risk Management  
               Authority et al., Workers Compensation Appeals Board, Case No.  

WCAB No.: ADJ7139354 
  
ADJOURNMENT: 



City Council Agenda                  July 25, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

4 

 
 
 
 
 
UPCOMING EVENTS: 
 

May 5 – Sept 29  Hughson Farmers’ Market (Thursday), 5:00 P.M. – 9:00 P.M. 

July 29  Hughson Community Night at the Modesto Nuts, John Thurman 
Field, 6:00 P.M. 

August 2  National Night Out, 6:00 P.M. – 9:00 P.M. 
August 8  City Council Meeting, City Hall Chambers, 7:00 P.M. 

 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
 

DATE:      July 21 , 2016 TIME:                    5:00 pm     

NAME:      Susana Diaz  TITLE:                    City Clerk  
         
 

 
Notice Regarding Non-English Speakers:  

 
Pursuant to California Constitution Article III, Section IV, establishing English as the official 
language for the State of California, and in accordance with California Code of Civil Procedures 
Section 185, which requires proceedings before any State Court to be in English, notice is 
hereby given that all proceedings before the City of Hughson City Council shall be in English 
and anyone wishing to address the Council is required to have a translator present who will take 
an oath to make an accurate translation from any language not English into the English 
language. 

WAIVER WARNING 
 
If you challenge a decision/direction of the City Council in court, you may be limited to raising only those 
issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing(s) described in this Agenda, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City of Hughson at or prior to, the public hearing(s).           

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT/CALIFORNIA BROWN ACT 
NOTIFICATION FOR THE CITY OF HUGHSON 

 
This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability; as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code Section 54954.2).    
 
Disabled or Special needs Accommodation:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 
requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting and/or if  you need 
assistance to attend or participate in a City Council meeting, please contact  the City Clerk’s office at (209) 883-4054. 
Notification at least 48-hours prior to the meeting will assist the City Clerk in assuring that reasonable 
accommodations are made to provide accessibility to the meeting.  



City Council Agenda                  July 25, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

5 

 
 
General Information: The Hughson City Council meets in the Council Chambers on 

the second and fourth Mondays of each month at 7:00 p.m., 
unless otherwise noticed.  

 
Council Agendas: The City Council agenda is now available for public review at 

the City’s website at www.hughson.org  and City Clerk's Office, 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, California on the Friday, prior to the 
scheduled meeting. Copies and/or subscriptions can be 
purchased for a nominal fee through the City Clerk’s Office.   

 
Questions:             Contact the City Clerk at (209) 883-4054 

http://www.hughson.org/


Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

 

  
Meeting Date: July 11, 2016
Subject: Approval of the City Council Minutes 
Presented By:  Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk  
 
Approved By: ____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
  
Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 11, 2016 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The draft minutes of the July 11, 2016 meeting are prepared for the Council’s review.  
   
 

 

  

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.1 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR    



City Council Minutes                  July 11, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
MONDAY, JULY 11, 2016 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOV’T CODE SECTION 54955 THE CITY CLERK AND CITY ATTORNEY HEREBY DECLARE 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON MEETING REGULAR SCHEDULE FOR JULY 11, 2016 ADJOURNED TO 
THE SENIOR CITIZEN CENTER, 2307 FOURTH STREET HUGHSON, CA. ALL NOTICES HAVE BEEN POSTED TIMELY 
AND DIRECTIONS HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO ANY GUESTS WHO ARE ARRIVING DIRECTING THEM TO THE ADJOURNED 
COUNCIL MEETING. 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 
 
ROLL CALL:   
 

Present:  Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 
Councilmember Harold Hill 

   Councilmember Jill Silva  
 
Absent:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
   Councilmember George Carr 
 
Staff Present: Raul L. Mendez, City Manager  
   Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk 
   Daniel J. Schroeder, City Attorney 
   Jaylen French, Community Development Director 
   Larry Seymour, Chief of Police Services 
   Shannon Esenwein, Finance Director  
   Lisa Whiteside, Finance Manager 
    
     

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

Due to construction, the meeting will 
be adjourned to the  

 Senior Citizens Center 
2307 Fourth Street, Hughson, CA 

 



City Council Minutes                  July 11, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 
 
INVOCATION:  Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young  

 
 
1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 
NONE. 
 
2. PRESENTATIONS:   NONE. 
 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
All items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted upon by a single action of the 
City Council unless otherwise requested by an individual Councilmember for special 
consideration.  Otherwise, the recommendation of staff will be accepted and acted upon 
by roll call vote. 
 

3.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 27, 2016. 
 
3.2: Approve the Warrants Register.  
 
3.3: Approve the Cooperative Agreement Renewal with Stanislaus County for 

the Stanislaus Urban County Community Development Block Grant 
Program and Authorize the City Manager to Sign the Said Agreement. 

 
Deputy City Clerk Diaz pulled 3.1 (Minutes) to make a correction. 
 
YOUNG/HILL 3-0 (BEEKMAN AND CARR – ABSENT) motion passes to approve 
the Consent Calendar items 3.2, and 3.3. 
 
SILVA/HILL 3-0 (BEEKMAN AND CARR – ABSENT) motion passes to approve 
Item 3.1 (Minutes) as amended. 
 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  NONE. 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  
 

5.1: Adopt Resolution No. 2016-26, Confirming Diagrams, Assessments and 
Reports and Levying Assessments for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 for All 
Landscape and Lighting Districts and Benefit Assessment Districts within 
the City of Hughson. 

 
 
Director French presented this item.  Rick Clark, Senior Project Manager from 
Harris & Associates, was in attendance and assisted City staff with answering 



City Council Minutes                  July 11, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

questions from the City Council.  Mayor Pro Tem Young opened the Public 
Hearing at 8:15 P.M. No comments were made and Mayor Pro Tem Young closed 
the Public Hearing at 8:16 P.M. 
 
SILVA/YOUNG 3-0 (BEEKMAN AND CARR – ABSENT) motion passes to approve 
Confirming Diagrams, Assessments and Reports and Levying Assessments for 
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 for All Landscape and Lighting Districts and Benefit 
Assessment Districts with one amendment to the Feathers Glen LLD. 
 

5.2: Approve the 2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey (ETS) and Introduce 
and Waive the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2016-06, Amending 
Section 10.40.020 – Speed Limits: Exceptions. 

 
Director French presented this item.  Mayor Pro Tem Young opened the Public 
Hearing at 8:26 P.M. Citizen Hans Picinich sought clarification with respect to the 
25 mph speed limit at Tully Road from Santa Fe Avenue to Hatch Road.  City staff 
confirmed that the speed limit would remain.  Mayor Pro Tem Young closed the 
Public Hearing at 8:28 P.M. 
 
SILVA/HILL 3-0 (BEEKMAN AND CARR – ABSENT) motion passes to approve the 
2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey (ETS) and introduce and waive the First 
Reading of Ordinance No. 2016-06, amending Section 10.40.020 – Speed Limits: 
Exceptions. 
 

5.3: Adopt Ordinance 2016-07, amending the Residency Requirements of the 
Hughson Parks and Recreation Commission and Adding Arts and 
Entertainment Matters to the Powers and Duties of the existing Hughson 
Parks and Recreation Commission. 

 
Director French presented the Staff Report on this item and Mayor Pro Tem 
Young opened the Public Hearing at 8:32 P.M. Parks and Recreation Commission 
Chair Hans Picinich commented in support of passing Ordinance 2016-07 
amending the residency requirements of the Hughson Parks and Recreation 
Commission and adding Arts and Entertainment matters to the powers and duties 
of the existing Hughson Parks and Recreation Commission. Mayor Pro Tem 
Young closed the Public Hearing at 8:35 P.M. 
 
HILL/YOUNG 3-0 (BEEKMAN AND CARR – ABSENT) motion passes to approve 
Ordinance No. 2016-07, amending the residency requirements of the Hughson Parks 
and Recreation Commission and adding Arts and Entertainment matters to the 
powers and duties of the Existing Hughson Parks and Recreation Commission. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS:  NONE. 
 



City Council Minutes                  July 11, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

4 

7. CORRESPONDENCE:  NONE.  
 
8. COMMENTS: 
 

8.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 
City Manager:   City Manager Mendez reminded 

Council that Thursday, July 14, 2016 
is the American Legion Post 
Installation dinner beginning at 6:00 
P.M. and encouraged Council to 
attend. The Modesto Nuts are hosting 
the San Jose Giants Friday, July 29, 
2016. The Chamber of Commerce 
designated the event as Hughson 
Community Night. Gates open at 6:00 
P.M. and Game starts at 7:00 P.M. 
The City will provide tickets to City 
staff and family as part of an 
appreciation night.  Tuesday, August 
2, 2016 is National Night Out. Staff 
has been working with the Hughson 
Family Resource Center and Citizens 
for a Healthy Community to develop a 
program for this year’s event. 
Council is invited to participate in the 
National Night Out festivities.  

 
City Clerk: Deputy City Clerk Diaz informed 

Council of the Nomination Period to 
run for the office of Mayor or 
Councilmember that will be opening 
July 18, 2016 and closing August 12, 
2016. 

 
Community Development Director: Director French updated the 

Council on the traffic 
signalization work beginning at 
Santa Fe Ave. and Hatch Rd. 
on July 18, 2016, including a 
one lane closure on July 18, 
2016 for preliminary work and 
full intersection closure for a 
two week period starting on 
July 22nd; crews will work six 
days a week, 24 hours a day, 



City Council Minutes                  July 11, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

5 

on the first phase of the 
installation of a traffic signal 
and widening of the 
intersection of Hatch Rd. and 
Santa Fe Ave. Through traffic 
detours have been established 
for citizens traveling in all 
directions. The full extent of 
the work will not be completed 
in this phase, as Burlington 
Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) 
needs to relocate their railroad 
crossing arms. When BNSF 
relocates their arms, crews will 
return to complete the work. 
Director French updated the 
Council on PG&E’s work to 
relocate the transmission 
vault, which is expected to 
begin in early August at Tully 
Rd. and Whitmore Ave. Work, 
including finishing the 
remainder of Tully Road 
improvement is expected to 
take six to eight weeks to 
complete. Director French 
reported that Homer Garza who 
has been with the City for 10- 
years has submitted his two 
week notice to pursue a new 
position in his passion of 
farming. His last day with the 
City is Friday, July 15, 2016. 
The City wishes him luck, and 
is working on a transition plan 
going forward. 

  
Director of Finance: Director Esenwein informed Council that 

City Hall will be closed on Thursday, July 
14, 2016 due to staff training. The City will 
be hosting AB1825 Prevention of 
Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation. 

 
Police Services: Chief Larry Seymour provided the City 

Council with the latest Crime Statistic 
Report.   



City Council Minutes                  July 11, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

6 

 
City Attorney: Reported that he will be absent the 

following two meetings. Deputy City 
Attorney Monica Streeter will be present in 
his absence. City Attorney Schroeder 
introduced his summer intern to observe 
the Council meeting. 

 
8.2: Council Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young:  NONE. 

 
Councilmember Carr:    ABSENT.  
 
Councilmember Silva thanked the Stanislaus County Sheriff’s Supervisors 
Association for donating a bike to be raffle off during the National Night Out 
festivities.  
 
Councilmember Hill attended Services to Older Adults Advisory Commission. 
Service providers, State and County agencies also attended. 
 

8.3: Mayor’s Comments: (Information Only – No Action) – ABSENT. 
  
 9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:   NONE. 
 
10. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION:   NONE.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
YOUNG/HILL 3-0 (BEEKMAN AND CARR – ABSENT) motion passes to adjourn the 
meeting at 8:50 P.M. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
JERAMY YOUNG, Mayor Pro Tem  

 
 
 
____________________________  
SUSANA DIAZ, Deputy City Clerk 
  



 

 

  
Meeting Date: July 25, 2016 
Subject: Approval of Warrants Register 
Enclosure: Warrants Register 
Presented By:  Shannon Esenwein, Director of Finance  
 
Approved By: ____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve the Warrants Register as presented.     
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The warrants register presented to the City Council is a listing of all expenditures 
paid from June 30, 2016 through July 20, 2016. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There are reductions in various funds for payment of expenses. 
 
 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.2 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR 









 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: July 25, 2016 
Subject: Designation of Voting Delegate for the League of 

California Cities Annual Conference   
Presented By: Susana Diaz, Management Analyst/Deputy City Clerk 
  
Approved: __________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve designating Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young as the Voting Delegate for the 
League of California Cities Annual Conference on October 5 -October 7, 2016 in 
Long Beach, California. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The League membership considers and takes action on resolutions that establish 
policy at the Annual Business Meeting that takes place during the Conference.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Young is registered to attend the League of California Cities 
Annual Conference. In order to vote on behalf of the City of Hughson the City 
Council must designate a voting delegate. Each Member City has the right to cast 
one vote on matters pertaining to league policy.  Mayor Pro Tem Young and City 
Manager Raul Mendez are already registered to attend this year’s conference.  
 
Upon approval, City staff will register with the League confirming Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeramy Young as the voting delegate representing the City of Hughson.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Registration costs associated with the 2016 League of California Cities Annual 
Conference and Exposition totaled $1,050 and are included as part of the City’s 
budget on an annual basis to ensure City representation.     
 
 
 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.3 
SECTION 3: CONSENT CALENDAR 









 

  
 
Meeting Date: July 25, 2016 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-06, Amending 

Section 10.40.020 – Speed Limits: Exceptions 
Enclosures: 2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey 
 Ordinance No. 2016-06 
Presented By:  Jaylen French, Community Development Director 
 
Approved By: _______________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Waive the second reading and adopt Ordinance No. 2016-06, amending Section 
10.40.020 – Speed Limits: Exceptions. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
In late-2015, Hughson Police Services notified City staff that the existing 
Engineering and Traffic Survey (ETS), commonly referred to as a Speed Survey, 
had expired and thus was no longer valid.  An expired ETS could result in issued 
speeding citations not holding up in court, if challenged.   
 
According to the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), 
November 2014, a municipality should update the ETS every five (5) years. The 
survey can be deemed valid for seven (7) years provided that local law 
enforcement has completed a 24-hour radar operator course [California Vehicle 
Code (CVC) 40802(c)(2)(B)(i)(I)]. Additionally, in some cases, the survey may be 
deemed valid through 10 years if the municipality’s traffic engineer certifies that no 
changes in roadway or traffic conditions have occurred over the survey’s life [CVC 
40802 (c)(2)(B)(i)(II)].  The City last prepared and adopted an ETS in 2003.  
Therefore, the survey is over 13 years old and should be updated. 
 
The Traffic Engineering division of the City’s current contract engineering firm, 
Willdan Engineering, began work on the ETS in late 2015 under the current 
contract with the City.  In February 2016, the first draft of the survey was provided 
to City staff for their review.  City staff coordinated with Hughson Police Services 
on the review.  Subsequently, coordinated comments were provided to Willdan 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.4 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR 



 

Engineering pertaining to roadway segments which should be re-evaluated under 
parameters of the MUTCD. 
 
Recommended speed limits on the segments in question were reconsidered and 
either adjusted or maintained based on the following speed sampling requirements 
in the MUTCD. 
 
Existing vehicle speeds are surveyed by a certified radar operator with a calibrated 
radar unit in an unmarked vehicle.  Speed samples are taken for each segment 
representing a statistically significant sample of current traffic.  This data is then 
evaluated to identify the distribution of speeds.  A key element in the evaluation is 
the identification of the 85th percentile speed.  The 85th percentile speed is the 
speed at or below which 85 percent of the traffic travels.  This threshold represents 
what is historically found to be a safe and reasonable speed for most drivers based 
on common roadway conditions.  Therefore, a speed limit is established at the 
nearest 5-mile per hour (mph) increment to the 85th percentile speed, except as 
shown in the two options below. 
 
Options: 
 

1. The posted speed may be reduced by 5 mph from the nearest 5 mph 
increment of the 85th percentile speed, in compliance with CVC Section 627 
and 22358.5.  

2. For cases in which the nearest 5 mph increment of the 85th percentile speed 
would require a rounding up, then the speed limit may be rounded down to 
the nearest 5 mph increment below the 85th percentile speed, if no further 
reduction is used.  Refer to CVC Section 21400(b). 

 
Discussion: 
 
The City of Hughson 2016 ETS is intended to be the basis for the establishment, 
revision, and enforcement of speed limits for selected streets within the City of 
Hughson. The ETS presents recommended speed limits for 13 street segments in 
the City.  Engineering and Traffic Surveys are required by the State of California to 
establish intermediate speed limits on local streets and to enforce those limits 
using radar or other speed measuring devices. These surveys must be updated 
every 5 or 7 years to ensure the speeds reflect current conditions as dictated by 
the CVC. The CVC also requires that the surveys be conducted based on the 
methodology required by the MUTCD. 
 
The survey was requested by the City for the proper posting of speed limits and to 
enable Hughson Police Services to utilize radar or other electronic speed 
measuring devices for speed enforcement. CVC Sections 40801 and 40802 
require Engineering and Traffic Surveys that verify the prima facie speed limit 
before enforcement by such a device is legal. 
 
The surveys were conducted in accordance with procedures outlined in the 
California MUTCD and as required by Section 627 of the CVC.  The CVC further 
describes three elements of an engineering and traffic survey: 
 



 

1. Measurement of prevailing speed; 
2. Collision history; and 
3. Roadway characteristics not readily apparent to the motorist. 

 
Posted speed limits are established primarily to protect the general public from the 
reckless and unpredictable behavior of dangerous drivers. They provide law 
enforcement with a clearly understood method to identify and apprehend violators 
of the basic speed law (CVC Section 22350). This law states that "No person shall 
drive a vehicle on a highway at a speed greater than is reasonable or prudent 
having due regard for weather, visibility, the traffic on, and the surface and width of 
the highway, and in no event at a speed which endangers the safety of persons or 
property." The posted speed limit gives motorists a clear warning of the maximum 
speed that is reasonable and prudent under typical driving conditions.  
 
The basic fundamentals for establishing speed limits recognize that the majority of 
drivers behave in a safe and reasonable manner, and therefore, the normally 
careful and competent actions of a reasonable driver should be considered legal. 
Speed limits established on these fundamentals conform to the consensus that 
those who drive the highway determine what speed is reasonable and safe, not on 
the judgment of one or a few individuals. A radar speed study is usually used to 
record the prevailing speed of reasonable drivers. 
 
Speed limits are also established to advise drivers of conditions which may not be 
readily apparent to a reasonable driver. For this reason, collision history, roadway 
conditions, traffic characteristics, and land use must also be analyzed before 
determining speed limits. Speed limit changes are usually made in coordination 
with physical changes in roadway conditions or roadside developments. Unusually 
short zones of less than one-half mile in length should be avoided to reduce driver 
confusion. 
 
Additionally, it is generally accepted that speed limits cannot be successfully 
enforced without voluntary compliance by a majority of drivers. Consequently, only 
the driver whose behavior is clearly out of line with the normal flow of traffic is 
usually targeted for enforcement. 
 
This item seeks City Council approval of the recommended speed limits on the 
identified 13 roadway segments within the City.  If approved, Section 10.40.020 of 
the HMC will be updated to be consistent with 2016 ETS and approved 
recommended speed limits.  The recommended speed limits are provided on Page 
8 of the attached ETS and are listed below.   



 

While some recommended speed limits are proposed to increase compared to 
currently posted speed limits, City staff has worked closely with Hughson Police 
Services and the preparing engineer to ensure that an appropriate speed limit is 
established. 
 
Traffic engineers, based on experience, understand that motorists travel at the 
speed with which they feel is safe, not necessarily by the posted speed limit.  
Therefore, the ETS collects speeds from at least 100 random vehicles on each 
roadway segment to determine the 'critical speed', i.e. the 85th percentile speed of 
the sampled vehicles.  In general, the speed limit should be set at the 5 mph 
increment nearest the critical speed.  However, the recommended speed limit, can 
be adjusted based on various factors.   For example, the critical speed for the 
segment of Santa Fe Avenue between Los Alamos Drive and Whitmore Avenue 
was determined to be 49 mph.  Based on "MUTCD Option 2", the recommended 
speed limit is allowed to be 45 mph, the 5 mph increment below the critical speed.   
 
The MUTCD also allows the traffic engineer to recommend a speed limit that is 
lower than the critical speed when the collision rate on that segment is higher than 
the Statewide average. 
 
Most of the roadways which were not surveyed are considered local streets and 
thus have a "prima facie speed limit" of 25 mph.  The approval of this survey 
ensures that Hughson Police Services are able to use radar to enforce posted 
speed limits established by a valid ETS.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact to approving the 2016 ETS. 
 
The consultant work to perform the study and prepare the report were approved in 
the City of Hughson Fiscal Year 2015-16 Final Budget in the amount of $18,000. 
 



 1 
 
1052585-1 

CITY OF HUGHSON 
CITY COUNCIL 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016 – 06 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON  
AMENDING SECTION 10.40.020 OF   

MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 10, CHAPTER 10.40 – SPEED LIMITS 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hughson desires to update the 
declared prima facie speed limits consistent with the 2016 Engineering and Traffic 
Survey (ETS). 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly noticed public hearing on this Ordinance 
on July 11, 2016, at which time it considered all evidence presented, both written and 
oral. 

NOW, THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1.  

Section 10.40.020 of Chapter 10.40 of Title 10 of the Hughson Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows:  

 
“It is determined upon the basis of an engineering and traffic survey that a 

prima facie speed limit greater than 25 miles per hour (mph) is necessary to 
facilitate the orderly, safe and reasonable movement of vehicle traffic upon the 
streets or parts of streets within the city designated in this section; and it is 
declared that the prima facie speed limit for each of those streets or parts of 
streets shall be as set forth in this section. The prima facie speed limits 
established by this section shall be effective when appropriate signs giving notice 
thereof are erected upon the street.  

 
 

 
Name of Street or 

Part of Street 

Declared 
Prima Facie 
Speed Limit 

 

 
A. Santa Fe Avenue, northbound and southbound, 
between Hatch Road and Los Alamos Drive 
 

 
50 mph 

 

B. Santa Fee Avenue, northbound and southbound, 
between Los Alamos Road and Whitmore Avenue 
 

45 mph  



 2 
 
1052585-1 

C. Santa Fee Avenue, northbound and southbound, 
between Whitmore Avenue and 7th Street 
 

50 mph  

D. Hatch Road, eastbound and westbound, 
between the westerly city limits and the easterly city 
limits 

 
55 mph 

 

E. Whitmore Avenue, eastbound and westbound, 
between Euclid Avenue and Tully Road. 

30 mph, 25 in 
school zones 
when children are 
present 

 

F. Tully Road, northbound and eastbound, 
between south city limits and Whitmore 
Avenue. 

 
40 mph 

 

G. Tully Road, northbound and eastbound, 
between Whitmore Avenue and Fox Road 

 
30 mph 

 

H. Euclid Avenue, northbound and southbound, 
between Fox Road and Whitmore Avenue. 

 
30 mph 

“ 

 
            

 Section 2. This ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or 
given effect in a manner that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a 
mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so as to 
provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law. 

Section 3. If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any 
person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions 
or applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision 
or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are severable.  The city 
council hereby declares that it would have adopted this ordinance irrespective of the 
validity of any particular portion thereof. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after its final 
passage. 

 Section 5. Within fifteen (15) days after its final passage, the City Clerk shall 
cause this ordinance to be posted in full accordance with Section 36933 of the 
Government Code. 

The foregoing ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting 
of the City Council of the City of Hughson held on July 11, 2016, and by a unanimous 
vote of the council members present, further reading was waived. 

 On motion of councilperson _____, seconded by councilperson _______, the 
second reading of the foregoing ordinance was waived and this ordinance was duly 



 3 
 
1052585-1 

passed by the City Council of the Hughson City Council at a regular meeting thereof 
held on July 25, 2016, by the following vote: 

     AYES:     

           NOES:  

           ABSTENTIONS:  

           ABSENT:   

 

 
                                                       MATT BEEKMAN, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

  
SUSANA DIAZ, Deputy City Clerk 









































































































 
1046265-1 

 

  
 
Meeting Date: July 25, 2016 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt Ordinance 2016-07, Amending the 

Residency Requirements of the Hughson Parks and 
Recreation Commission and Adding Arts and 
Entertainment Matters to the Powers and Duties of the 
Existing Hughson Parks and Recreation Commission  

Enclosures: Ordinance No. 2016-07 
Presented By:  Jaylen French, Community Development Director 
 
Approved By: _______________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Waive the second reading and adopt Ordinance No. 2016-07, amending Chapters 
2.14 – Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission and 12.24 – Use of 
Public Parks, Sections 2.14.010, 2.14.020, 2.14.030.A, 2.14.040.B, 2.14.090.C, 
2.14.090.D, 2.14.090.E, 12.24.040.A, 12.24.040.B, 12.24.040.C, 12.24.170, and 
adding Section 2.14.040.D to add Arts and Entertainment matters to the powers 
and duties of the Commission and to amend the residency requirements of the 
revised Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
In February 2005, the Hughson City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2005-06 
creating the Hughson Parks and Recreation Commission.  The Commission, which 
consists of five (5) members, serves in an advisory capacity to the City Council.   
 
Discussion: 
 
Arts and Entertainment Duties 
 
The powers and duties of the existing Parks and Recreation Commission currently 
consist of: 
 

- Advising the Council regarding acquisition, development, maintenance and 
improvement of park facilities and make recommendations as appropriate. 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.5 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR 



 
 

- Formulating and recommending to the Council schedules, policies, rules 
and regulations for park sites and other recreation facilities. 

 
- Formulate and recommend to the Council a recreation and park program for 

the inhabitants of the City which emphasizes general educational and 
recreational objectives for children and adults of the city; promotes and 
stimulates public interest in parks and recreation programs; and which 
encourages to the fullest extent possible the cooperation of the local school 
authorities and other public and/or private agencies or interests. 
 

- Advise the Council regarding the acceptance or rejection of offers of 
donations of money, personal and/or real property to the city for recreation, 
and park purposes and use and make recommendations where appropriate. 
 

- Advise the Council regarding the parks and recreation budgets and make 
recommendations as appropriate. 
 

- At the first meeting in each calendar year, except the first year of 
establishment, the commission shall approve an annual report of its 
activities, and the state of the city’s parks and recreation programs, and 
forward it to the Council. 
 

Recently, there has been interest from several individuals, clubs, and organizations 
to address arts and entertainment matters in the City of Hughson in a more holistic 
and/or comprehensive manner.  Several ideas were expressed including creating 
an Arts and Entertainment Commission or merging these duties under an existing 
commission. 
 
Stemming from the potential identified at the Concerts in the Park (2014) and 
Concerts Series: Downtown (2015), the addition of musical entertainment at the 
new Hughson Farmers’ Market (2015-2016) and increased musical performances 
at the Hughson Fruit and Nut Festival and other Hughson events, there is 
increased interest and passion surrounding providing and encouraging arts and 
entertainment in Hughson. 
 
City staff has previously discussed this matter with the Hughson Parks and 
Recreation Commission.  At the March 8, 2016 meeting, the Commission 
recommended onto the City Council that the Council direct staff to draft an 
Ordinance incorporating arts and entertainment matters into the powers and duties 
of the established Hughson Parks and Recreation Commission.  During staff’s 
drafting of this ordinance another issue was discovered.  
 
Residency Requirements 
 
The Hughson Parks and Recreation Commission has maintained a vacancy since 
May 2015, or approximately 13 months.  Prior to 2015, the Commission has had 
frequent periods of vacancies. 
 



 
 

City staff is of the opinion that adding arts and entertainment matters to the powers 
and duties of the Commission—the original component of this amendment—will 
help in the goal to maintain a full Commission and also help City efforts in the arts 
and entertainment area.  On May 23, 2016, the City Council directed staff to draft 
an amendment to the Hughson Municipal Code to add arts and entertainment 
matters to the duties of the established Hughson Parks and Recreation 
Commission.  City staff is bringing this item back for further direction. 
 
The issue of vacancies has been a frequent topic of discussion amongst staff, 
commissioners and others. Informally, staff and the Commission have 
contemplated ways to ensure the Commission is full.  Currently, HMC Section 
2.14.030.A requires the Commission members reside in Hughson and are 
registered voters.  Below is a summary of four ideas that have been explored to 
change those requirements to ensure the Commission is full.  As the City Council 
is aware, many people who consider themselves Hughsonians do in fact live just 
outside of the City Limits and use the City parks and recreation programs.  A 
revision to the qualification would provide an ability to allow those individuals, who 
associate with the City, but do not live within the City Limits, to participate on the 
Parks and Recreation Commission. 
 
At the June 13, 2016 City Council meeting, City Council directed staff to include in 
the drafted Ordinance, an amendment to the residency requirements of the Parks 
and Recreation Commission as follows:  
 

1. Amend the Municipal Code to revise the residency requirements for up to 
two (2) members of the five (5) member commission from within the City 
Limits to the Hughson postal code area.  At least three (3) members must 
reside within the Hughson City Limits. 

 
In consideration of both matters identified in this staff report, City staff, in 
coordination with legal counsel, has drafted the attached ordinance 
comprehensively addressing all issues as recommended by the Parks and 
Recreation Commission and as directed by Council. 
 
This item is to collect public testimony regarding the potential amendments to the 
Hughson Municipal Code on the Parks and Recreation Commission and to seek 
council approval of said amendments after consideration of all public testimony. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact to adding arts and entertainment matters to the 
powers and duties of the Commission and to amending the residency requirements 
of the established Hughson Parks and Recreation Commission.   
 
The Parks and Recreation Commissioners serve without compensation. 



 

 1 
 
1049555-1 

  CITY OF HUGHSON 
CITY COUNCIL 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016 – 07 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON AMENDING 
THE CHAPTER TITLE OF MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 2.14 – PARKS, 

RECREATION AND ENTERTAINMENT COMMISSION, SECTIONS 2.14.010, 
2.14.020, 2.14.030.A, 2.14.040.B, 2.14.090.C, 2.14.090.D, 2.14.090.E, 12.24.040.A, 

12.24.040.B, 12.24.040.C, 12.24.170, AND ADDING SECTION 2.14.040.D 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Hughson desires to expand the duties 
and powers of the Parks and Recreation Commission (“Commission”) to include arts 
and entertainment, and 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Hughson desires to change the title of 
the Commission to the Park, Recreation and Entertainment Commission, and 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Hughson desires to amend the 
qualifications for membership of the Commission, and 

WHEREAS, The City Council held a duly noticed public hearing on this 
Ordinance on July 11, 2016, at which time it considered all evidence presented, both 
written and oral. 

NOW, THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1.  

The title of Chapter 2.14 of Title 2 of the Hughson Municipal Code is amended as 
follows:   

“PARKS, RECREATION AND ENTERTAINMENT COMMISSION” 

Section 2.  

Section 2.14.010 of Chapter 2.14 of Title 2 of the Hughson Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows: 

“The city parks, recreation and entertainment commission is hereby established. 
The parks, recreation and entertainment commission shall serve in an advisory 
capacity to the city council. The commission shall consist of five members who 
shall serve without compensation.” 



 

 2 
 
1049555-1 

 

Section 3.   

Section 2.14.020 of Chapter 2.14 of Title 2 of the Hughson Municipal Code’s 
definition of “Commission” is amended to read as follows: 

 
“Commission” shall mean the city parks, recreation and entertainment 
commission established by this chapter.” 
 

Section 4.  

Section 2.14.030.A of Chapter 2.14 of Title 2 of the Hughson Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows: 

“A. No fewer than three (3) commissioners shall be citizens that reside within 
the city limits of the City of Hughson and no more than two (2) commissioners 
shall be citizens that reside outside of the city limits in the 95326 zip code. All 
commissioners shall be registered voters.” 

Section 5. 

Section 2.14.040.B of Chapter 2.14 of Title 2 of the Hughson Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows: 

“B.  Should a vacancy occur on the commission, for any reason, including 
expiration of terms, the vacancy shall be filled by appointment by the city council. 
Each council member, and the mayor, shall have the right to make nominations 
pursuant to the established normal process for nominations, continuing until 
nominations are closed, and the person receiving the highest number of votes, 
so long it is at least three affirmative votes, shall be appointed. Any appointment 
by the city council shall not result in less than three (3) commissioners that reside 
within the city limits of the City of Hughson serving on the commission, as 
required by HMC 2.14.030.A. Appointments to fill vacancies for unexpired terms 
shall only be for the balance of the unexpired term of the vacant portion.” 

Section 6. 

Section 2.14.040.D of Chapter 2.14 of Title 2 of the Hughson Municipal Code is 
added to read as follows: 

“D.  To ensure that the commission has three (3) commissioners that reside 
within the city limits of the City of Hughson, as required by HMC 2.14.030.A, and 



 

 3 
 
1049555-1 

comply with staggered terms, as required by HMC 2.14.040.C, in years where 
three (3) commissioners are to be appointed, at least two (2) commissioners 
shall reside within the city limits of the City of Hughson. In years where two (2) 
commissioners are to be appointed, at least one (1) commissioner shall reside 
within the city limits of the City of Hughson.”  

Section 7. 

Section 2.14.090.C of Chapter 2.14 of Title 2 of the Hughson Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows: 

“C. Formulate and recommend to the city council a recreation, park and 
entertainment program for the inhabitants of the city which emphasizes general 
educational and recreational objectives for children and adults of the city; 
promotes and stimulates public interest in parks, recreation, arts and 
entertainment programs; advise the City Council on parks, recreation, arts and 
entertainment experiences; and which encourages to the fullest extent possible 
the cooperation of the local school authorities and other public and/or private 
agencies or interests.” 

Section 8. 

Section 2.14.090.D of Chapter 2.14 of Title 2 of the Hughson Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows: 

“D. Advise the city council regarding the acceptance or rejection of offers of 
donations of money, personal and/or real property to the city for recreation, park 
and entertainment purposes and use and make recommendations where 
appropriate.” 

 
Section 9. 

Section 2.14.090.E of Chapter 2.14 of Title 2 of the Hughson Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows: 

“E. Advise the city council regarding the parks, recreation and entertainment 
budgets and make recommendations as appropriate.” 

 
 Section 10.   

Section 12.24.040.A of Chapter 12.24 of Title 12 of the Hughson Municipal Code 
is amended to read as follows: 



 

 4 
 
1049555-1 

“A.  The city council, with recommendation(s) from the parks, recreation, and 
entertainment commission, shall by resolution establish, adopt and amend 
guidelines and policies for the use of facilities within the boundaries of the city of 
Hughson for city-sponsored and co-sponsored recreational and entertainment 
activities.” 

Section 11. 

Section 12.24.040.B of Chapter 12.24 of Title 12 of the Hughson Municipal Code 
is amended to read as follows: 

“B.  The city council may by resolution, with recommendation(s) from the 
parks, recreation and entertainment commission, set fees for participation in 
recreational and entertainment programs sponsored or co-sponsored by the city 
and held at facilities within the city of Hughson.” 

Section 12. 

Section 12.24.040.C of Chapter 12.24 of Title 12 of the Hughson Municipal Code 
is amended to read as follows: 

“C.  The city council may by resolution, with recommendation(s) from the 
parks, recreation and entertainment commission, set fees for rental of parks or 
portions of parks.” 

Section 13. 

Section 12.24.170 of Chapter 12.24 of Title 12 of the Hughson Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows: 

“The donation of plants, buildings, fountains, sculptures, ponds, pools, or any 
other item or funds for such item for any park or building shall first be approved 
by the parks, recreation and entertainment commission.” 

 Section 14. This ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or 
given effect in a manner that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a 
mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so as to 
provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law. 

Section 15. If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any 
person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions 
or applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision 
or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are severable.  The city 
council hereby declares that it would have adopted this ordinance irrespective of the 
validity of any particular portion thereof. 



 

 5 
 
1049555-1 

Section 16. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after its final 
passage. 

 Section 17. Within fifteen (15) days after its final passage, the City Clerk shall 
cause this ordinance to be posted in full accordance with Section 36933 of the 
Government Code. 

The foregoing ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting 
of the City Council of the City of Hughson held on July 11, 2016, and by a unanimous 
vote of the council members present, further reading was waived. 

 On motion of councilperson _____, seconded by councilperson _______, the 
second reading of the foregoing ordinance was waived and this ordinance was duly 
passed by the City Council of the Hughson City Council at a regular meeting thereof 
held on July 25, 2016, by the following vote: 

     AYES:     

           NOES:  

           ABSTENTIONS:  

           ABSENT:   

 
                                                       MATT BEEKMAN, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

  
SUSANA DIAZ, Deputy City Clerk 



 

  
 
 
Meeting Date: July 25, 2016 

Subject: Approval to Adopt Resolution No. 2016-24, Adopting 
Addendum #2 to the Negative Declaration for the City of 
Hughson Well No. 7 Replacement Project 

Enclosures: Addendum #2 to the Negative Declaration for the City of 
Hughson Well No. 7 Replacement Project 

Resolution No. 2016-24 

Presented By:  Jaylen French, Community Development Director  

 

Approved By: ______________________________ 

 
 

Staff Recommendation:   
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2016-24, a resolution of the City Council of the City of 

Hughson adopting Addendum #2 to the Negative Declaration for the Well No. 7 

Replacement Project. 

 
Background:   
 
Pursuant to the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund application for the 
Well No. 7 Replacement Project, and in accordance with the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) an Initial Study for the project was 
prepared and independently reviewed by staff in 2013.   The Initial Study identified 
potentially significant environmental effects on biological and cultural resources, 
but that these potential effects would be reduced to a less than significant level 
with recommended mitigation measures.  On the basis of the Initial Study, a 
proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared.   
 
In 2013, the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) was circulated 
for public and agency review for 30 days; a Notice of Intent to adopt the Negative 
Declaration was published in the Hughson Chronicle.  All applicable comments 
received on the IS/MND were incorporated into the adopted document.   
 
Subsequently, the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) commented that 
the Well No. 5 reconstruction project, which was mentioned but not analyzed in the 
Negative Declaration, should be incorporated into the Negative Declaration in an 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.1 
SECTION 4:  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 



addendum (Addendum #1).  An addendum makes minor changes to the Negative 
Declaration for the record but does not require additional public review or 
recirculation of the Negative Declaration. No other substantive environmental 
issues that would require reconsideration or recirculation of the IS/MND were 
raised during the public review period. 
 
In 2016, the California State Water Resources Board (SWRB) staff, after 
coordinating with City staff on the proposed consolidation project—the effort to 
extend the city water system to two (2) out of boundary users—determined that 
additional environmental analysis was required to analyze minor revisions to the 
project.  City staff, through SWRB staff, determined that an Addendum (Addendum 
#2) was the appropriate environmental documentation. 
 
Staff has since prepared the Addendum and submitted to the California State 
Clearinghouse for a 15-day review period which closed on July 13, 2016.     
 
The attached Resolution No. 2016-24 sets forth the environmental findings 
required by CEQA, adopts Addendum #2 of the IS/MND for the Well No. 7 
Replacement Project.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact to adopting Resolution No. 2016-24, adopting 
Addendum #2 of the IS/MND.  Once adopted, City staff will work with SWRB staff 
to finalize the details of the funding/financing agreement for the estimated $8.6 
million Well No. 7 Replacement Project. 
 
In 2015, the Hughson City Council, through a Proposition 218 process, approved a 
five (5) year rate increase to help fund the Well No. 7 Replacement Project. 
  



CITY OF HUGHSON 
CITY COUNCIL   

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-24 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON 
ADOPTING ADDENDUM #2 OF THE NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE 

CITY OF HUGHSON WELL NO. 7 REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS,  pursuant to the City’s Safe Drinking Water State Revolving 
Loan Fund application for the Well No. 7 Replacement Project, and in accordance 
with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), an Initial 
Study was prepared for the project and independently reviewed by staff in 2013; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Initial Study identified potentially significant environmental 
affects on biological and cultural resources, but that these potential affects would 
be reduced to a less than significant level with recommended mitigation measures.  
On the basis of the Initial Study, a proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration was 
prepared; and 

 
WHEREAS, subsequently, the California Department of Public Health 

(CDPH) commented that the Well No. 5 reconstruction project, which was 
mentioned but not analyzed in the Negative Declaration, should be incorporated 
into the Negative Declaration in an addendum (Addendum #1); and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2016, the California State Water Resources Board (SWRB) 

staff, after coordinating with City staff on a proposed consolidation project—an 
effort to extend the city water system to two (2) out of boundary users—determined 
that additional environmental analysis was required to analyze minor revisions to 
the original project; and   

 
WHEREAS, City staff, through SWRB environmental staff, determined that 

an Addendum (Addendum #2) to the original Negative Declaration was the 
appropriate environmental documentation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Hughson does hereby adopt Addendum #2 to the Negative Declaration for the City 
of Hughson Well No. 7 Replacement Project. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 

City of Hughson this 25th day of July 2016, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:   
   

NOES:      
  

ABSTENTIONS:  
 

 ABSENT:   
                                                          



 
                          
______________________________ 

                                                                 MATT BEEKMAN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
____________________________________ 
SUSANA DIAZ, Deputy City Clerk 
 

 

 



 
ADDENDUM NO. 2 

 
TO THE 

 
INITIAL STUDY / MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

WELL NO. 7 REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
CITY OF HUGHSON, CALIFORNIA 

 
 
 
 

JUNE 20, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
 
 

CITY OF HUGHSON 
7018 Pine Street (office) 

PO Box 9 (mailing) 
Hughson, CA  95326 

(209) 883-4054 
 

  



INTRODUCTION 
 
In 2013, the City of Hughson proposed the replacement of its existing potable water Well No. 7, lost 
to nitrate contamination, with a new well to be known as Well No. 9. Development of the new well 
site, located east of Tully Road at Roeding Road, includes the well, water treatment equipment, a 1.0 
million gallon storage tank, a booster pump station, chemical storage, pipelines, and other 
appurtenances associated with the treatment, storage and distribution of potable water.   
 
Prior to project approval, the City prepared an Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration in 
accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and on the 
basis of the Initial Study, a proposed Negative Declaration (Public Review Draft IS/MND) addressing 
the well/treatment project and a 12-inch pipeline connecting the new well to existing water distribution 
facilities at Whitmore Avenue was prepared and circulated for public and agency review. The City 
Council adopted the IS/MND at its June 24, 2013 meeting.   
 
At about the same time, the City proposed to connect the Well No. 9 water treatment and storage 
facilities with the City’s Well No. 5, which was to be reconstructed.  Well No. 5 is located along the 12-
inch pipeline, approximately 1,900 feet north of the new well site.  An addendum to the adopted 
IS/MND was prepared to address the potential environmental effects of proposed reconstruction of 
Well No. 5; the addendum was adopted by the City in 2013.  
 
Further minor modifications are proposed to the overall project.  The existing 12-inch pipeline 
connecting the new well with Well No. 5 is proposed to be modified to transport Well No. 5 water to 
the Well No. 9 site for treatment.  Treated water from both wells will be delivered to the existing City 
pipelines in Whitmore Avenue via a new 16-inch pipeline to be constructed within the paved or 
disturbed section of existing Tully Road, parallel with the existing 12-inch pipeline.   
 
This document is Addendum No. 2 to the adopted Well No. 7 IS/MND as modified by Addendum No. 
1 to the IS/MND.  Both documents are attached and are hereby incorporated by reference. A copy of 
these documents may also be reviewed at Hughson City Hall, 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, California.  
This addendum contains revisions to the adopted CEQA documents, including an addition to the 
Project Description addressing changes in piping systems and consideration of the potential 
environmental effects of those changes.  Revisions to the Well No. 7 IS/MND described in this 
addendum consist entirely of minor changes.  The revised IS/MND, including Addendum No. 1 and 
this Addendum No. 2, when adopted, does not identify any new or substantially more severe 
environmental effects, and does not identify the need for new or more effective mitigation measures, 
than were identified in the adopted IS/MND and Addendum No. 1.  
 
CEQA PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE ADDENDUM 
 
When a Negative Declaration has been prepared, and changes to the project or its circumstances 
require revisions to the Negative Declaration, CEQA offers options to streamline the subsequent 
environmental review.  When the revisions to the Negative Declaration are minor, and the revisions 
would not involve new significant effects or an increase in the severity of effects, then an Addendum 
to the Negative Declaration can be prepared.   
 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15164 provides that an addendum may be used to make "minor technical 
changes or additions" that are necessary to assure that the previous IS/MND is "adequate under 
CEQA," provided that no new important "issues about the significant effects on the environment" are 
raised (CEQA Guidelines § 15164).  The provisions of Section 15164 are outlined below. 
 

(a) (Refers only to EIRs) 



 
(b) An addendum to an adopted negative declaration may be prepared if only minor changes 

or additions are necessary or none of the conditions described in Section 15162 calling for 
the preparation of a subsequent EIR or negative declaration have occurred. 

 
(c) An addendum need not be circulated for public review but can be included in or attached to 

the final EIR or adopted negative declaration. 
 
(d) The decision-making body shall consider the addendum with the final EIR or adopted 

negative declaration prior to making a decision on the project. 
 
(e) A brief explanation of the decision not to prepare a subsequent EIR pursuant to Section 

15162 should be included in an addendum to an EIR, the lead agency’s required findings 
on the project, or elsewhere in the record.  The explanation must be supported by 
substantial evidence. 

 
CHANGES IN PROPOSED PROJECT AND/OR ITS CIRCUMSTANCES 
 
The Well No. 7 Replacement Project is described in detail in the Public Review Draft IS/MND, and 
proposed reconstruction of the City’s existing Well No. 5 is described in the adopted Addendum No. 
1.   
 
In the adopted IS/MND, Well No. 7 was proposed to be and will be replaced at a new site, east of 
Tully Road at Roeding Road, with a new Well No. 9 and connected to Whitmore Avenue via an 
existing 12-inch pipeline.  The City will also reconstruct its existing Well No. 5, adjacent to Tully Road, 
as described in the adopted Addendum No. 1.   
 
The proposed modification of the project consists of modifying the existing 12-inch pipeline to allow its 
use for transfer of non-potable water from Well No. 5 to Well No. 9 for treatment; a portion of this 
existing pipeline would be disconnected from the City potable distribution system south of Well 5.  A 
new 16-inch pipeline would be extended from the new Well No. 9 north along Tully Road to join the 
existing City water distribution system in Whitmore Avenue.   
 
Construction of the new 16-inch pipeline, considered alone, is eligible for a statutory exemption from 
CEQA under CEQA Guidelines Section 15282(k).  However, because new pipeline construction is 
part of the larger Well No. 7 Replacement Project considered in the IS/MND, and to avoid any 
concern regarding piece-mealing, this project element is hereby treated in this Addendum to the 
adopted IS/MND.   
 
The addition of this otherwise CEQA-exempt project element is not considered a major change in the 
IS/MND Project Description.  As discussed in more detail below, this change would not involve 
potential for new or more severe environmental effects than were addressed in the Public Review 
Draft IS/MND. 
 
The City of Hughson has not identified any changes in the circumstances of the project, as revised, 
that would involve potential for new or more severe environmental effects.  The City has not identified 
any new information related to the project that would involve potential for new or more severe 
environmental effects.   
 
  



POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS OF THE REVISED PROJECT 
 
The City of Hughson has considered the potential environmental effects of adding the proposed 16-
inch pipeline construction to the proposed Well No. 7 Replacement Project with the following results:   
 

Aesthetics.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would involve no changes in visual resources at or 
near the well site, or along Tully Road.   
 
Agriculture.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would occur within the disturbed section of the 
Tully Road right-of-way and would involve no effect on agriculture. 
 
Air Quality. The proposed 16-inch pipeline would not involve any substantial construction 
emissions or cause any long-term changes in air emissions.   
 
Biological Resources.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would occur within the disturbed section 
of the Tully Road right-of-way and would involve no effect on biological resources. 
 
Cultural Resources.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would occur within the disturbed section of 
the Tully Road right-of-way and would involve no effect on cultural resources.  A new (2016) 
cultural resources report was prepared to address the project as required by the National 
Historic Preservation Act in connection with State project funding.  No cultural resources or 
cultural resources effects were identified in the study; the study is available to qualified 
reviewers at the City of Hughson offices.   
 
Geology and Soils.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would involve no substantial new soil 
disturbance, potential for soil erosion or potential geologic hazard effects.   
 
Global Climate Change.  Other than very minor construction emissions of greenhouse gases, 
the project would not involve any increased effect on project-related greenhouse gas 
emissions or global climate change.   
 
Hazards.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline alignment is largely paved, but all portions have been 
subject to past disturbance associated with road construction and maintenance.  Construction 
of proposed 16-inch pipeline at this site would not involve any known potential for 
environmental release or worker exposure to hazardous materials or waste.   
 
Hydrology and Water Quality.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would involve an incidental 
change to an existing site and would involve no surface hydrology or water quality effects.  The 
proposed 16-inch pipeline would involve no change in effects on groundwater or groundwater 
quality.   
 
Land Use.   The proposed 16-inch pipeline would not involve any change in the land use on 
the site or in the surrounding areas.   
 
Minerals.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would be located in an existing roadway and would 
involve no effect on mineral resources. 
 
Noise.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would involve short-term and minor construction noise 
increases within an existing industrial area.  Construction noise would not result in a significant 
noise effect on sensitive receptors.  The pipeline would not involve any change in existing 
ambient noise levels in the project vicinity.   
 



Population and Housing.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would not have any effect on existing 
housing or population.   
 
Public Services.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would occur entirely within existing public road 
right-of-way.  The project would not involve any increase in demands for public services or 
interfere with existing patterns of service delivery.  The project will provide critical fire 
suppression water, in accordance with local fire code and industry standards, for protection of 
public health and real property.   
 
Transportation.  The project would not involve any significant construction or post-construction 
traffic, or other transportation, impacts. 
 
Utilities.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would involve a beneficial effect on the Hughson 
potable water system and no effect on other utilities. 
 
Mandatory Findings of Significance.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would have no effect in 
any of the resource categories considered in an Initial Study, and no effect on biological and 
cultural resources.  As a result, the potential environmental effects of the proposed 16-inch 
pipeline would not combine with environmental effects identified in the IS/MND and Addendum 
No. 1 to generate any other potentially significant cumulative effects.  There are no known 
projects with which the proposed 16-inch pipeline could combine to produce significant 
cumulative impacts.  The proposed 16-inch pipeline would not add to the potential 
environmental effects of buildout of the Hughson 2005 General Plan as identified in the 
Hughson 2005 General Plan EIR.  
 

As documented above, the revised project would not involve any new or substantially more severe 
environmental effects than were identified in the Public Review Draft IS/MND. 
 
FINDING 
 
Based on the analysis in this document, and the document incorporated by reference, the revised 
project will not involve: 1) substantial changes to the project, 2) substantial changes in the 
circumstances of the project or 3) new information of substantial importance that would result in new 
significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of significant effects 
described in the adopted IS/MND and Addendum No. 1.  Therefore, it is appropriate for the City of 
Hughson to adopt this Addendum No. 2 to the Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration for the 
Well No. 7 Replacement Project and to approve the revised project based on the previously-adopted 
IS/MND plus Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2.   

 
 
 



 

 

  
 

Meeting Date: July 25, 2016 

Subject: Approval to Award the Request for Proposals for Reuse of 

City Property Located on Leedom Road (Lower Ponds) 

Near the Waste Water Treatment Facility to Mid Valley Nut 

Company and Related Actions.  

Presented By:  Raul L. Mendez, City Manager 

 

Approved By: _______________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendations: 
 
1. Award the Request for Proposals for reuse of City property located on Leedom 

Road (Lower Ponds) near the Waste Water Treatment Facility to Mid Valley Nut 
Company. 

 
2. Approve directing City staff, and the City Attorney, to negotiate an agricultural 

lease agreement with Mid Valley Nut Company for the subject property of 
approximately 35 acres.  

 
Background and Overview: 
 
On December 9, 2014, the Hughson City Council approved a lease extension 
between the City of Hughson and Michael Noeller for approximately twelve (12) 
acres of City-owned property adjacent to the Waste Water Treatment Facility along 
Leedom Road to October 31, 2015 or completion of the harvest of the fall 2015 
almond crop, whichever occurs later.  
 
At that time, the City Council directed staff to bring back a discussion to begin 
exploring future options for the 12 acres Leedom property.  Subsequently, further 
direction was provided to take a look at all available City property adjacent to the 
Waste Water Treatment Facility (which includes the Lower Ponds that consists of 
approximately 35 acres) to begin developing a more comprehensive plan or 
approach.  City staff began that process during the evaluation of the Noeller 
agricultural lease last fall.   
 
Last summer, a Request for Proposals was issued for farming of the smaller 12 
acre Leedom property and subsequently on September 14, 2015, the City Council 
awarded the 25-year agricultural lease to Michael Noeller dba Noeller Farms.  Mr. 
Noeller, in recent weeks, has removed the older block (planted in 1975) of almonds 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.2 

SECTION 4: UNFINISHED BUSINESS 



 

 

and will be replanting the section in peaches as previously indicated.  Once 
redeveloped, the entire orchard on City property will be planted in almonds and 

peaches—adding diversity to the operation. 

 
Based on prior City Council direction and discussion, City staff begun developing a 
plan for the Lower Ponds.  As previously discussed, and advised by the City 
Attorney, the City decided as a first step to hire a professional firm to conduct 
preliminary environmental work to best determine any restrictions with the property 
that may limit future use and to identify any associated mitigation that may be 
necessary.   
 
Environmental Site Assessment 
 
The City of Hughson contracts with Condor Earth Technologies (“Condor”) for a 
variety of services including storm water management and environmental reporting 
of municipal facilities.  Condor also has a division that focuses on environmental 
assessment.  Condor's environmental staff are experienced professionals who 
perform a diverse range of investigative, remedial, and compliance-type services 
for both public and private sectors. 
 
In light of the environmental work needed for the Lower Ponds, City staff contacted 
Condor's environmental division and received a proposal for a Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment.  On November 9, 2015, the City Council 
approved utilizing Condor Earth Technologies to conduct the Phase I 
Environmental Assessment through an agreement at a cost not to exceed $3,600.  
The City Manager executed the associated agreement to commence the work on 
November 20, 2015.  The Phase I Environmental Assessment Report was 
accepted by the City Council on January 25, 2016.   
 
For reference, the following is summary of the Condor’s Opinions and Conclusions 
as contained Phase I Environmental Site Assessment: 
 

• A Phase I ESA was performed in conformance with the scope and 
limitations of ASTM E 1527-13 for APNs 009-026-031 and 032, located at 
6424 Leedom Road, Hughson, Stanislaus County, California. 

• The former use of the Site for raw sewage disposal from the 1940s to the 
mid-1980s constitutes a recognized environmental condition pursuant to 
ASTM Standard.  Elevated concentrations of metals may be present in soil 
within the former wastewater ponds, particularly the northern ponds. 

• The former use of a portion of the Site as a gun range constitutes a 
recognized environmental condition pursuant to the ASTM Standard.  
Elevated concentrations of lead due to lead shot and/or bullets are likely 
present in the target area of the Site. 

• The green waste dump constitutes a de minimis condition.  While there is 
evidence of the landfill including some solid waste, it is unlikely that 
significant quantities of hazardous waste are present at the landfill. 

• Condor recommended further evaluation of the soil in the pond areas for 
metals in order to assist the Client with land re-use decisions. 

 



 

 

Because the majority of the property being examined consists of the area formerly 
used for raw sewage disposal or the “wastewater ponds,” additional evaluation of 
that area was a focus of further discussions in order to better understand reuse 
options.  City staff requested a cost proposal from Condor for the recommended 
soil testing and obtained City Council approval on February 8, 2016 to commission 
the additional work.   
 
Summary of Phase II Environmental Site Assessment 
 
Condor conducted four tasks to complete the Phase II Environmental Site 
Assessment Report within the determined schedule: (1) Work Plan and Field Work 
Preparation, (2) Field Work, (3) Laboratory Analysis and Evaluation and (4) Report 
Preparation.  Condor had a site visit on February 25, 2016 to accomplish the 
contracted work. 
 
The following is a summary of the scope of work for the Phase II Environmental 
Site Assessment: 
 

• Condor collected seven surface soil samples from the former wastewater 
treatment ponds on site. 

• All detected metals concentrations appear to be representative of naturally 
occurring background metals concentrations for the region and are below 
sensitive land use regulatory screening levels. 

• The detected concentrations of constituents do not appear to pose a risk to 
human health or the environment, and the site is acceptable for unrestricted 
uses. 

• Condor recommended no further evaluation of the site. 
 
Request for Proposals for Reuse Options 

 
Based on the results of the full environmental work conducted by Condor Earth 
Technologies, City staff recommended proceeding forward with a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) to solicit proposals from parties interested in leasing the subject 
property for viable and creative reuse.  Some of the options contemplated by City 
staff included agriculture, recreation, education, solar, etc.   
 
Following City Council direction on April 25, 2016, an RFP was finalized, with 
assistance by the City Attorney, and released on May 2, 2016.  The RFP and all 
related material (including the environment documents) were made available on 
the City website.  An on-site tour of the subject property was held on May 27, 2016 
and interested parties were on hand to view the site and ask questions regarding 
the RFP.  All questions received (at the on-site tour and directly by staff via phone 
or email) and staff responses were made available on the City website so that all 
interested parties had access to the same information.  Four proposals were 
received by the City by the June 17, 2016 deadline and all were determined to be 
responsive.  City staff invited representatives from the four responding parties to 
interviews the week of June 18-30, 2016 to discuss respective proposals and to 
answer staff questions.  City staff consisting of the City Manager and Community 
Development Director conducted an evaluation of the proposals based on reuse 
plan viability, qualifications, experience, revenue generation capability, etc. 



 

 

Evaluation of Proposals 
 
The following table depicts the main elements of each proposal in order of 
interviews conducted.   
 

 
 
 

Based on the merits of the proposal received, City staff ranked them accordingly 
as follows. 
 

1. Mid Valley Nut Company 
2. Growers Direct Nut Company 
3. Noeller Farms 
4. Owens Livestock  

 

Firm Owner(s) Reuse Proposal Experience Terms Other Rank

Proposer 1 Owens Livestock Richard Ayala Grazing, feeding 

and holding 

livestock (cattle)

Currently rents 

irrigated pasture 

in Riverbank area.  

Involved with 

livestock for 40+ 

years.

$300/month for 

entire property or 

$3,600/year.  

Requesting 5-10 

year lease.

Without irrigation 

there would only 

be minimal 

seasonal grass 

and would require 

supplementary 

feeding or moving 

of livestock.

4

Proposer 2 Grower Direct Nut 

Company

Ron Martella Agricultural use, 

storage of farm 

products and 

possible 

composting and 

almond orchard.

Commercial 

walnut harvesting, 

shelling, hulling 

and dehydration 

for 50 years.

$5,200/year for 

first 5 years.  5% 

increase at each 5 

year increment.  If 

almond orchard is 

installed, 

percentage of 

gross income.  

Requesting 20 

year lease with 

two 5 year 

extensions.

Composting of 

almond shells 

would be explored.

2

Proposer 3 Noeller Farms Michael and Brian 

Noeller

Cling peach 

orchard.  

Currently farming 

City property 

adjacent to Waste 

Water Treatment 

Facility (~12 

acres).

15% gross 

proceeds based on 

the value of the 

crop delivered.  

Requesting 25 

year lease.  After 

five years, 

estimate City 

portion to be 

approximately 

$40,000.

Due to cost of 

preparing the land 

for farming 

anticipating 

$200,000 initial 

investment and 

looking to share 

equally in that 

cost with the City. 

3

Proposer 4 Mid Valley Nut 

Company

John Casazza Walnut orchard. Walnut processing 

business started in 

1970.  Currenlty, in-

shell walnuts 

sacked for export 

to private label 

cello packs ready 

for snacking.

Cash rent of $350 

per farmable acres 

($12,250 for 35 

acres annually) for 

5 years.  After 5 

years, rent will be 

20% of gross 

income annually 

(estimated at 

$27,000).  

Requesting 30 

year lease.

Proposer would 

like the right to 

buy the property at 

the end of the 

lease.

1



 

 

City staff was very pleased with the results of the RFP process and discussing 
each reuse proposal with responding parties—many of which have a long standing 
history of operating successful agricultural businesses in the Hughson area.  Each 
proposal had strengths in their own right and the City essentially had the 
opportunity to select from a variety of different agricultural uses.   
 
City staff is recommending that the RFP be awarded to Mid Valley Nut Company 
and to provide direction to begin negotiations with Mr. John Casazza on the 
agricultural lease agreement and the specific terms and conditions.  Once the 
lease agreement is agreeable to both parties, City staff will bring it back for City 
Council consideration and action. 
 
This item was originally slated to come before the City Council on July 11, 2016 for 
consideration, but City staff decided to hold off until this regular meeting so that 
ample time would be provided to fully evaluate each proposal.  If approved this 
evening, City staff will begin crafting a lease agreement in cooperation with the City 
Attorney and anticipates being able to bring it back for approval during the August 
22, 2016 regular meeting or shortly thereafter.   
   
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Condor Earth Technologies completed the Phase I and II Environmental Site 
Assessments of the Lower Ponds at a total cost of $7,700 and funded through 
existing budgeted appropriations.  It is anticipated that a lease agreement for the 
subject property, once approved, will generate additional annual revenue over the 
term of the agreement that will be deposited back into the appropriate enterprise 
funds for operational and capital expenses.         
  



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
SITE MAP 

 
 
 

 
 

  

Subject Property – APNs 009-026-031 and 

-032 

Restricted Area (RA) 

RA 



 

 

 EXHIBIT B  
PROXIMITY MAP 

 

 
 

Project Site 



 

  
 

Meeting Date: July 25, 2016 

Subject: Consideration to Accept the Donation of a Outdoor Park 

Bench by Private Citizens for the Hughson Family 

Resource Center 

Presented By:  Jaylen French, Community Development Director 

 

Approved By: _______________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Accept the donation of a outdoor park bench to the City by private citizens for the 
Hughson Family Resource Center. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
Bertie Areias and Dick Cunningham, Hughson area residents, have a desire to 
donate a park bench to the City of Hughson for the Hughson Family Resource 
Center (HFRC) for their use in front of their current location on Hughson Avenue.  
The bench will expand the HFRC seating area for clients and family members 
accessing services.  Ms. Areias and Mr. Cunningham have coordinated with the 
HFRC and the City of Hughson to determine the correct park bench for placement 
and will donate funding for the bench in the appropriate manner.  The selected 

park bench is 8’ in length and costs approximately $800.  

 
Ms. Areias and Mr. Cunningham would like to donate the bench in memory of 

Lorraine Cunningham and Margaret Sturtevant—two long standing members of the 

Hughson community. 
 
According to Section 2.12.090.D. of the Hughson Municipal Code, the Parks and 

Recreation Commission shall, “Advise the city council regarding the acceptance or 

rejection of offers of donations of money, personal and/or real property to the city 
for recreation, park purposes and use and make recommendations where 

appropriate.” 
 
On July 12, 2016, the Hughson Parks and Recreation Commission, during their 
regularly scheduled meeting recommended that the City Council accept the 
donation of said outdoor park bench. 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.1 

SECTION 6:  NEW BUSINESS 



 

  
Discussion: 
 
The outdoor park bench to be donated will match the existing park benches in the 
downtown (Georgetown Benches), located at Hughson Avenue and Charles 
Street, at Hughson Avenue and 4th Street and at the Senior Center.  Each year, 
the City of Hughson receives a $5,000 California Recycle grant which is to be used 
on items derived from recycled materials.  The City, in past years, has used these 
funds to purchase ground cover (bark) for parks and playgrounds, signage, 
bumper stops, and street furniture such as park benches, picnic tables and 
garbage cans.  Last year, the City purchased two park benches to replace the 
existing benches in front of the Senior Center, as well as three garbage cans for 
the Senior Center and at the intersection of 4th Street and Hughson Avenue.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The expected cost is approximately $1,100.00 including cost, tax and shipping and 
handling.  City staff handles the installation and maintenance of the benches as 
well as securing the bench to the sidewalk. 



  
 

Meeting Date: July 25, 2016 

Subject: Approval of the Contract with Gilton Solid Waste 

Management, Inc. for Street Sweeping Services 

throughout the City of Hughson and Related Actions 

Enclosures: 2016 Street Sweeping Contract 

Resolution No. 2016-27 

Presented By:  Sam Rush, Public Works Superintendent 

Martha Serrato, Accounting Technician II 

 

Approved By: _______________________________________ 

 
 

Staff Recommendations: 
 

1. Approve the contract with Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. for $21,645 
for annual city street sweeping services plus a contracted hourly rate for 
after event sweeping and emergency sweeping services; and  
 

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-27, authorizing the Mayor to execute a three 
year contract, inclusive of any final edits by the City Attorney, for street 
sweeping services with Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc., with the 
option to extend the term of the contract by one year term(s). 

 
Discussion: 
 
Based on City Council direction to undertake the RFP process for all City services, 
City staff prepared and released a Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit proposals 
from interested parties to provide all annual street sweeping services including: bi-
weekly street sweeping, responsibility for street sweeping after City events and 
street sweeping services in the case of emergencies.  
 
The City of Hughson held a non-mandatory bidders conference on June 3, 2016 to 
answer the questions of four interested companies in attendance.  The bids were 
due on June 28, 2016 at 2:00 P.M.  There were four proposal received.  After a 
careful evaluation by City staff based on several factors, the primary factor being 
total cost to the City, Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. was identified as the 
preferred vendor for this proposal process.   
 
 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.2 

SECTION 6: NEW BUSINESS 



Fiscal Impact: 
 
The proposed cost, which was carried forward in the attached contract for street 
sweeping services for the City of Hughson is $21,645, plus $90 per hour for event 
clean up sweeping and $125 per hour in emergency sweeping.  The cost will be 
funded through Fund 30, Gas Tax 2107.  City staff has budgeted $26,000 in the 
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Preliminary Budget for this service. 



CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF HUGHSON 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-27  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON AWARDING 
A CONTRACT TO GILTON SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT, INC. TO PROVIDE 

STREET SWEEPING SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 
THE AGREEMENT. 

 
WHEREAS, based on City Council direction to ensure all City services are being 

provided as efficiently and cost-effectively as possible City staff solicited proposals for 
its regular street sweeping services as well as after event sweeping services and 
emergency sweeping services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Hughson received four (4) proposals; and  
 
WHEREAS,  after a careful evaluation by City staff on based on several factors, 

the primary factor being total cost to the City, Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. was 
identified as the preferred vendor; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed cost, which was carried forward in the contract for City 

of Hughson street sweeping services, is $21,645, plus $90 per hour for after event 
sweeping and $125 per hour in emergency sweeping for a three year term with optional 
one year extension(s).  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Hughson requires professional services to provide street 
sweeping within the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Hughson City Council 
authorizes the mayor to execute a contract with Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. to 
provide street sweeping services not to exceed $21,645.00 per year plus additional 
sweeping per the contracted rate as requested by City staff. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Hughson at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on this 25th day of July, 2016 by the following roll call vote: 
                 
                  AYES:             
 
                  NOES:            
 
                  ABSTENTIONS:      
 
                  ABSENT: 
                
 
 



 
 _________________________ 
 MATT BEEKMAN, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
SUSANA DIAZ, Deputy City Clerk 
 



 
1051794-3 

1 

Contract for Street Sweeping Services 
 
THIS CONTRACT (“Contract”) dated this ___ day of __________, 2016, is entered into by and 
between the City of Hughson, a municipal corporation (“City”), and Gilton Resource 
Recovery/Transfer Facility, Inc., a California Corporation, doing business as Gilton Solid Waste 
Management, Inc. (“Contractor”), for street sweeping services to be provided by Contractor. City 
and Contractor may each be referred to as “Party” or collectively as “Parties”. There are no other 
Parties to this Contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Contractor agree to all terms and provisions contained within 
the Contract as follows: 

SECTION  I.  
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A. Contractor shall provide street sweeping services (“Services”) to the City for the 
purpose of removing debris from all roads, streets and highways within the City including 
gutters, uncurbed streets, and intersections (collectively “Streets”).   The debris to be removed 
includes, but is not limited to, sand, glass, cans, litter, light leaves and other debris normally 
swept by mechanical street sweepers from Streets.  The Services provided shall leave the area of 
the Streets within eight feet of the curb or uncurbed edge free of debris. Contractor shall be 
responsible for leaves that fall off trees within the area eight feet from the curb or uncurbed edge 
of the Streets; however, Contractor shall not be responsible for piles of leaves located within 
eight feet from the curb or uncurbed edge of Streets.  

B. Streets in which Services shall be provided within the City of Hughson are as 
indicated on the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, which is hereby incorporated herein by 
reference.  The City reserves the right to amend the map by providing 10 days written notice to 
Contractor indicating the amended Streets in which Services shall be provided.  

C. Contractor shall establish a regular schedule in which Services will be provided 
within the City (“Regular Schedule”).  The Regular Schedule shall provide for the Services to be 
performed in all residential areas of the Streets bi-weekly. Services shall not be provided in 
residential areas on weekends or between the hours of 5 PM and 6 AM.  Services shall be 
performed in commercial areas between the hours of 12 AM and 6 AM.  Contractor shall provide 
the City of Hughson Public Works Director the Regular Schedule of Services.  

D. If Contractor cannot perform Services pursuant to the Regular Schedule due to 
adverse weather conditions, Contractor shall immediately notify the City Public Works 
Superintendent to substantiate the conditions which prevent the performance of Services. The 
Contractor shall then perform said Services within three days of the notification in the areas 
which did not receive Services, provided that weather and garbage collection days permit. 

E. If the Regular Schedule provides for Services to be performed on any of the following 
designated holidays: New Year’s Day, Presidents’ Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, 
Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day or Christmas Day, Contractor shall perform such Services on the 
next weekday. 



 
1051794-3 

2 

F. Except as provided for in paragraphs D and E of this Section, amendments or 
exceptions to the performance of Services pursuant to the Regular Schedule shall only be 
permitted upon written notification by the contractor or through prior direction from the City 
Community Development Director.  Contractor agrees to provide additional unscheduled 
Services (“Unscheduled Services”) in addition to the Regular Schedule upon request for the City 
Community Development Director.  

G. Contractor shall provide a supervisor or foreman available via phone at all times to 
direct Services as needed. The supervisor, foreman, or operator shall report any problems or 
concerns that occur or exist to the City Public Works Superintendent. Contractor shall update 
City with cell phone numbers where the supervisor or foreman may be reached at any time of the 
day and week. 

H. The Contract is not exclusive, and City may utilize other street sweeping services as it 
may desire. 

I. Contractor shall cooperate with other City operations, including, but not limited to, 
garbage collection, street maintenance and construction activities.  Contractor’s foreman or 
supervisor shall coordinate such cooperation through the City Public Works Superintendent. 

J. This Contract shall be over seen by the City Community Development Director and 
the City Public Works Superintendent. 

SECTION  II.  
EQUIPMENT AND SPECIFICATIONS 

A. Contractor shall provide all supplies, tools, machines and equipment required to 
perform the Services pursuant to this Contract.   

B. Contractor’s machines and equipment shall be furnished with an efficient water spray 
system for dust control, and Contractor shall maintain the spray system in good operating 
condition. 

C. Contractor’s machines and equipment shall be properly registered and insured by 
Contractor in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Contractor’s operators shall 
also be properly licensed and insured in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  

D. Contractor’s machines and equipment shall be maintained by Contractor in good 
working condition at all times and in the event that machine or equipment operation problems 
exist, Contractor will provide backup machines and equipment, or alternatively, perform the 
Services pursuant to the Regular Schedule during the next regularly scheduled Services day. 

E. Contractor shall maintain a sufficient supply of spare brooms and other parts to ensure 
timely and continuous fulfillment of this Contract. 

F. Contractor’s machines and equipment shall be capable of removing litter, sand, light 
leaves, and debris to meet reasonable community cleanliness standards. 



 
1051794-3 

3 

G. Contractor’s machines and equipment shall comply with all federal, State, and local 
safety regulations, rules or requirements, including compliance with the City’s Storm Water 
Discharge Permit, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 

H. Contractor’s machines and equipment shall have a safety beacon operating at all 
times while performing Services. 

I. The Contractor shall immediately remedy any spill or discharge of street sweeping 
debris, waste, fluids or other such materials from either the equipment or other service activity, 
and shall contain and clean up such materials at no cost to the City. Contractor shall prevent any 
materials from entering any storm water inlet, drains, basins, or sewer system; and shall submit 
within twenty-four  (24) hours by email or hand delivery, a report describing the type(s) and 
quantities of such release, and the clean-up actions taken. 

SECTION  III.  
CITY OF HUGHSON OBLIGATIONS 

A. City will provide access to, and use of, the existing water hydrants at locations 
designated by the City at no cost to Contractor for filling water spray systems necessary for the 
performance of Services. 

B. Following reasonable requests by Contractor, City shall provide that trees or shrubs 
are trimmed to allow accessibility by Contractor to streets without interference. 

C. City shall dispose of all debris generated by Services. 

SECTION  IV.  
COMPENSATION 

A. City agrees to pay Contractor for Regular Schedule Services performed and 
Unscheduled Services at the rate set forth in the accepted bid Exhibit “C”, of Twenty-Five 
Thousand Nine Hundred and Forty-Five dollars ($21, 645.00) per year, a copy of which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein.  The mileage and hourly rates identified in this 
paragraph shall apply to any additional curb miles added to this Contract by the parties pursuant 
to Section I, Paragraph B, of this Contract.   

B. City will provide payment to Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
Contractor’s invoice for Services performed.  Contractor shall not provide invoices to City more 
than once each month.  

C. For Unscheduled Services provided where the City requests Service be performed at 
least twenty-four (24) hour of its request, the City shall pay the Contractor at a rate of Ninety 
dollars ($90.00) per hour.  For Unscheduled Services provided in an emergency situation where 
the City requests Service be performed within one (1) hour of its request, the City shall pay the 
Contractor at a rate of one-hundred and twenty-five dollars ($125.00) an hour.  

D. Contractor may request an increase in rates based upon substantial increase in 
operating costs; i.e. wages, insurance, equipment maintenance, fuel, etc.  The City Council may 



 
1051794-3 

4 

amend the Contract and grant such an increase in an amount that it deems reasonable, if in its 
sole judgment, the reasons for such an increase are justifiable.  The City may require an 
independent audit.  The City reserves the right to require adjustments in operations of the 
Contractor due to changing community needs or developments in street sweeping and cleaning. 
 

SECTION  V.   
TERM OF CONTRACT 

A. This Contract shall be effective on July 15, 2016, and will continue in effect for three 
years or until terminated as provided in this Contract. The City, at its sole discretion, may extend 
the term of the contract by one year term(s). 

SECTION  VI.  
STATUS OF CONTRACTOR 

A. Contractor shall enter into this Contract, and remain throughout the term of the 
Contract, as an independent contractor.  Contractor agrees that it is not and will not become an 
employee, partner, agent, or principal of City while the Contract is in effect.  Contractor agrees 
it, and its employees, are not entitled to the rights or benefits afforded to City’s employees, 
including disability or unemployment insurance, workers’ compensation, medical insurance, sick 
leave, or any other employment benefit. 

B. Contractor is responsible for providing, at his own expense, disability, 
unemployment, and other insurance, workers’ compensation, training, permits and licenses for 
itself and for its employees and subcontractors.  Contractor agrees to hold harmless and 
indemnify City for any and all claims arising out of or any injury, disability, or death of any 
Contractor employees or agents. 

C. Contractor is responsible for paying all income taxes, including estimated taxes, 
incurred as a result of the compensation paid by City to Contractor pursuant to the Contract.  
Contractor agrees to indemnify City for any claims, costs, losses, fees, penalties, interest, or 
damages suffered by City resulting from Contractor’s failure to comply with this provision. 

D. Contractor may, at Contractor’s own expense, use any employees or subcontractors as 
Contractor deems necessary to perform the Services.  City may control, direct, or supervise those 
situations where the City deems it necessary for the purpose of ensuring public safety, or 
Contractor’s apparent non-conformance with laws, permits, regulations, or contract provisions, 
or in the absence of Contractor’s required supervision. 

SECTION  VII.  
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY 

A. Contractor agrees to maintain an insurance policy with a minimum coverage amount 
of $1,000,000.00 to cover negligent acts or omissions committed by Contractor, its employees, 
subcontractors, or agents during the performance of any duties under this Contract. Contractor 
further agrees to indemnify, defend and hold City free and harmless from any and all claims 
arising from any such negligent act or omission. 



 
1051794-3 

5 

B. Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold City free and harmless from any and 
all claims, demands, losses, costs, expenses, obligations, liabilities, damages, recoveries, and 
deficiencies, including interest, penalties, attorneys’ fees, and costs, that City may incur as a 
result of a breach by Contractor of any representation or provision contained in this Contract. 

SECTION  VIII.  
TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 

A. Termination on Notice Without Cause.  This Contract may be terminated by the City 
without cause upon thirty-day (30) advance written notice to the Contractor, or by the Contractor 
upon ninety-day (90) advance written notice to the City. 

B.  Termination on Occurrence of Stated Events.  This Contract will terminate 
automatically on the occurrence of any of the following events: 

1. Bankruptcy or insolvency of Contractor. 

2. Sale of the business of Contractor. 

3. Assignment of this Contract by either Party without the consent of the other. 

C. Termination for Default.  If either Party defaults in the performance of this Contract 
or materially breaches any of its provisions, the non-breaching Party may terminate this Contract 
by giving written notification to the breaching Party.  Termination will take effect immediately 
on receipt of notice by the breaching Party or five days after mailing of notice, whichever occurs 
first.  For the purposes of this paragraph, material breach of this Contract includes, but is not 
limited to, the following: 

1. City’s failure to pay Contractor any compensation due within thirty (30) days, 
after written demand for payment. 

2. Contractor’s failure to complete the Services specified in this Contract.  

SECTION  IX.  
NOTICES 

A. Any notices required by this Contract shall be made by either personal delivery in 
writing or by U.S. first class mail postage prepaid. Notices delivered personally will be deemed 
communicated as of actual receipt.  Mailed notices will be deemed communicated the fifth day 
after mailing.  Notices shall be made to the following: 

CITY  
City of Hughson 
Attn: Public Works Director 
67018 Pine Street 
P.O. Box 9 
Hughson, CA  95326  
Phone: (209) 883-4054 



 
1051794-3 

6 

 
CONTRACTOR  
Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. 
755 South Yosemite Ave. 
Oakdale, CA 95361 
Phone: (209) 527 – 3781 
 

SECTION  X.  
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

A. Contractor’s Qualifications.  Contractor represents that it has the qualifications and 
skills necessary to perform the Services under this Contract in a competent, professional manner, 
without the advice or direction of City. This means Contractor is able to fulfill the requirements 
of this Contract.  Failure to perform all the Services required under this Contract constitutes a 
material breach.  Contractor has complete and sole discretion for the manner in which Services 
under this Contract will be performed. 

B.  Assignment.  Neither this Contract, nor any duties or obligations under this Contract, 
may be assigned by Contractor without the prior written consent of City. 

C.  Prevailing Wages.  Contractor will comply with the requirements of Labor Code 
Section 1720 et seq. and pay its employees prevailing wages for Services provided pursuant to 
this Contract. 

D. Entire Contract of the Parties.  This Contract supersedes any and all contracts, either 
oral or written, between the parties with respect to the rendering of Services by Contractor to 
City and contains all representations, covenants, and contracts between the parties with respect to 
the rendering of those Services.  Both City and Contractor acknowledges that no representations, 
inducements, promises, or Contracts, orally or otherwise, have been made by any Party, or 
anyone acting on behalf of any Party, which are not contained in this Contract, and that no other 
contract, statement, or promise not contained in this Contract will be valid or binding.  Any 
modification of this Contract will be effective only if it is in a writing signed by the Party to be 
charged. 

E. Partial Invalidity.  If any provision of this Contract is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will continue in full 
force and effect without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

F. Arbitration.  Any controversy between the City and the Contractor involving the 
construction or application of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract will, on 
the written request of one Party served on the other, be submitted to binding arbitration.  The 
arbitration will comply with and be governed by the provisions of the California Arbitration Act, 
Section 1280 through 1294.2 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.  The parties will each 
appoint one person to hear and determine the dispute.  If those two persons are unable to agree, 
then they will select a third impartial arbitrator whose decision will be final and conclusive on 
both parties.  The cost of arbitration will be borne in a proportion determined by the arbitrators. 



 
1051794-3 

7 

G. Attorneys’ Fees. If any legal action is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of 
this Contract, the prevailing Party is entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees, which may be set by 
the court in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any 
other relief to which that Party may be entitled. 

H. Governing Law.  This Contract will be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of California, on the date this Contract was executed.  

I. It is expressly understood and agreed that a waiver of any of the conditions or 
covenants of this Contract shall not be considered a waiver of any of the other provisions hereof. 

SECTION  XI.  
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 
It is mutually agreed and understood that the complete Contract shall consist of this Contract, 
referenced Exhibits, and the following component documents, all of which are fully incorporated 
herein as if attached, and which together constitute the Contract Documents: 

• Instructions For Bidders 

• Faithful Performance Bond and Labor and Materials Bond (if applicable) 

• General Conditions 

• Any Published Addenda or Supplements 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Contract on this ____ day of  
  , 2016. 

 
CONTRACTOR  
Gilton Resources Recovery/Transfer Facility, Inc. 
Doing business as: Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc.  
 
 
      
___________________(Title) 
 
 
CITY OF HUGHSON 
 
 
      
MATT BEEKMAN, MAYOR 
 
 



 
1051794-3 

8 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
SUSANA DIAZ, DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 
       



 
1051794-3 

9 

Exhibit A 
City of Hughson Street Map 

 



 
1051794-3 

10 

Exhibit B 
City of Hughson Stormwater Discharge Permit 

 



 
1051794-3 

11 

Exhibit C 
Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. Submitted Bid 



Parks & Recreation Commission Minutes             July 12, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  
 
 
 

MINUTES 
TUESDAY, JULY 12, 2016 – 6:00 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Chair Hans Picinich  
 
ROLL CALL:  Chair Hans Picinich  
    Vice Chair Tamara Thomas 
    Commissioner Matt House  
     
 
 Staff Present: Jaylen French, Community Development Director 
    Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk 
      
 
FLAG SALUTE:  Chair Hans Picinich 

 
   
1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 
Members of the audience may address the City Council on any item of interest to the public 
pertaining to the City and may step to the podium, state their name and city of residence for the 
record (requirement of name and city of residence is optional) and make their presentation. 
Please limit presentations to five minutes. Since the City Council cannot take action on matters 
not on the agenda, unless the action is authorized by Section 54954.2 of the Government Code, 
items of concern, which are not urgent in nature can be resolved more expeditiously by 
completing and submitting to the City Clerk a “Citizen Request Form” which may be obtained 
from the City Clerk.  
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION MEETING 

 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

Due to construction, the meeting will be 
adjourned to the  

City Hall Annex Building 
7012 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 



Parks & Recreation Commission Minutes             July 12, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

2. PRESENTATIONS: NONE. 
 
3. UNFINISHED BUISNESS:  NONE. 
 
4. NEW BUSINESS:   
 
 4.1: Approve the minutes of June 14, 2016 
 
The June 14, 2016 Meeting Minutes were approved as amended.  
THOMAS/PICINICH (3-0) motion to approve Item 4.1 as amended. 
 
 4.2: Accept the donation of a Park Bench. 
 
Director French provided the report on this item. PICINICH/HOUSE (3-0) 
motion to accept the donation of a Park Bench. 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:   NONE. 
 
6. INFORMATION ITEMS:    NONE. 
   
7. COMMENTS:  
 

7.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
  

Community Development Director:  Director French provided an 
update regarding the 
construction of the basketball 
court starting Monday, July 11, 
2016, completion date is 
scheduled for September 1, 
2016. A basketball game will be 
scheduled to commemorate 
the basketball court. Teams 
have not been decided. 
Director French and City 
Manager Mendez will schedule 
a Parks/Facilities needs 
meeting. The meeting is 
anticipated to take place 
July/August 2016. Council 
approved the first reading of 
Ordinance 2016-07 adding Arts 
and Entertainment to Parks & 
Recreation Commission. The 
Ordinance also revises the 



Parks & Recreation Commission Minutes             July 12, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

residency requirements to 
allow up to two members from 
within the postal code outside 
the City limits. The vacancy 
may be advertised beginning 
July 25, 2016 and can stay 
open for a month, with the idea 
of appointing the new member 
in August. 

 
City Clerk: Ordinance 2016-07 will be 

published in Hughson 
Chronicle Tuesday, July 19, 
2016. 

  
7.2: Commissioner Comments; (Information only- No Action) 
 
Commissioner THOMAS:    NONE. 
 
Commissioner HOUSE:    NONE. 
 
Commissioner REDDING:   ABSENT. 
 
Chairman PICINICH:    Chair Picinich noted the  

title of the Commission in the 
draft Ordinance 2016-07 
excluded the word “Arts”. 
Chairman Picinich would like 
to see the Commission title to 
read “Park, Recreation, Arts 
and Entertainment 
Commission.   

         
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Chair Matt House adjourned this meeting at 6:32 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Parks & Recreation Commission Minutes             July 12, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

4 

Chair,  Hans Picinich 
 
 
 
Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk 

 


	1.1 Agenda 7-25-2016
	AGENDA
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken):
	2. PRESENTATIONS:
	3. CONSENT CALENDAR:
	4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
	5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE.
	7. CORRESPONDENCE:
	7.1: Parks Recreation Commission Minutes for July 12, 2016.
	8. COMMENTS:
	9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:


	City of Hughson
	City Council Meeting
	City Hall Council Chambers
	Senior Citizens Center
	Notice Regarding Non-English Speakers:

	3.1 Minutes and Coversheet 7-11-2016
	MINUTES
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken):
	2. PRESENTATIONS:   NONE.
	3. CONSENT CALENDAR:
	4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  NONE.
	5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:
	8. COMMENTS:
	9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:   NONE.


	City of Hughson
	City Council Meeting
	City Hall Council Chambers
	Senior Citizens Center

	3.2 Warrant Register Cover Sheet 7-25-2016
	3.2a Warrants Register 7-25-2016
	3.3 LeagueCaCities Delegate SR 7-25-2016
	3.3a LeagueCaCitites Designation of Voting Delegates 7-25-2016
	3.4 2016 ETS Approval Second Reading SR 7-25-2016
	3.4a 2016 ETS Approval ORD DS 7-25-2016
	3.4b 2016 FINAL Hughson E&T Report 7-25-2016
	3.5 PRC Amendment_Second Reading_SR 7-25-2016
	3.5a PRC Amendment ORD 07-25-2016
	“D. Advise the city council regarding the acceptance or rejection of offers of donations of money, personal and/or real property to the city for recreation, park and entertainment purposes and use and make recommendations where appropriate.”
	“E. Advise the city council regarding the parks, recreation and entertainment budgets and make recommendations as appropriate.”

	4.1 Well No. 7 Replacement CEQA Addendum No. 2_SR  Reso 7-25-2016
	4.1a Addendum No. 2 edited 6-20-16 7-25-2016
	4.2 RFP Award Lower Ponds SR 7-25-2016
	6.1 Park Bench Donation SR 7-25-2016
	6.2 Street Sweeping Contract Gilton SR 7-25-2016
	6.2a Street Sweeping Contract Gilton RESO 7-25-2016
	6.2b Street Sweeping Contract Services 2016 Agreement with Gilton 7-25-2016
	SECTION  I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES
	A. Contractor shall provide street sweeping services (“Services”) to the City for the purpose of removing debris from all roads, streets and highways within the City including gutters, uncurbed streets, and intersections (collectively “Streets”).   Th...
	B. Streets in which Services shall be provided within the City of Hughson are as indicated on the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, which is hereby incorporated herein by reference.  The City reserves the right to amend the map by providing 10 days ...
	C. Contractor shall establish a regular schedule in which Services will be provided within the City (“Regular Schedule”).  The Regular Schedule shall provide for the Services to be performed in all residential areas of the Streets bi-weekly. Services ...
	D. If Contractor cannot perform Services pursuant to the Regular Schedule due to adverse weather conditions, Contractor shall immediately notify the City Public Works Superintendent to substantiate the conditions which prevent the performance of Servi...
	E. If the Regular Schedule provides for Services to be performed on any of the following designated holidays: New Year’s Day, Presidents’ Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day or Christmas Day, Contractor shall perform such ...
	F. Except as provided for in paragraphs D and E of this Section, amendments or exceptions to the performance of Services pursuant to the Regular Schedule shall only be permitted upon written notification by the contractor or through prior direction fr...
	G. Contractor shall provide a supervisor or foreman available via phone at all times to direct Services as needed. The supervisor, foreman, or operator shall report any problems or concerns that occur or exist to the City Public Works Superintendent. ...
	H. The Contract is not exclusive, and City may utilize other street sweeping services as it may desire.
	I. Contractor shall cooperate with other City operations, including, but not limited to, garbage collection, street maintenance and construction activities.  Contractor’s foreman or supervisor shall coordinate such cooperation through the City Public ...
	J. This Contract shall be over seen by the City Community Development Director and the City Public Works Superintendent.

	SECTION  II.  EQUIPMENT AND SPECIFICATIONS
	A. Contractor shall provide all supplies, tools, machines and equipment required to perform the Services pursuant to this Contract.
	B. Contractor’s machines and equipment shall be furnished with an efficient water spray system for dust control, and Contractor shall maintain the spray system in good operating condition.
	C. Contractor’s machines and equipment shall be properly registered and insured by Contractor in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Contractor’s operators shall also be properly licensed and insured in accordance with the laws of th...
	D. Contractor’s machines and equipment shall be maintained by Contractor in good working condition at all times and in the event that machine or equipment operation problems exist, Contractor will provide backup machines and equipment, or alternativel...
	E. Contractor shall maintain a sufficient supply of spare brooms and other parts to ensure timely and continuous fulfillment of this Contract.
	F. Contractor’s machines and equipment shall be capable of removing litter, sand, light leaves, and debris to meet reasonable community cleanliness standards.
	G. Contractor’s machines and equipment shall comply with all federal, State, and local safety regulations, rules or requirements, including compliance with the City’s Storm Water Discharge Permit, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.
	H. Contractor’s machines and equipment shall have a safety beacon operating at all times while performing Services.
	I. The Contractor shall immediately remedy any spill or discharge of street sweeping debris, waste, fluids or other such materials from either the equipment or other service activity, and shall contain and clean up such materials at no cost to the Cit...

	SECTION  III.  CITY OF HUGHSON OBLIGATIONS
	A. City will provide access to, and use of, the existing water hydrants at locations designated by the City at no cost to Contractor for filling water spray systems necessary for the performance of Services.
	B. Following reasonable requests by Contractor, City shall provide that trees or shrubs are trimmed to allow accessibility by Contractor to streets without interference.
	C. City shall dispose of all debris generated by Services.

	SECTION  IV.  COMPENSATION
	A. City agrees to pay Contractor for Regular Schedule Services performed and Unscheduled Services at the rate set forth in the accepted bid Exhibit “C”, of Twenty-Five Thousand Nine Hundred and Forty-Five dollars ($21, 645.00) per year, a copy of whic...
	B. City will provide payment to Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of Contractor’s invoice for Services performed.  Contractor shall not provide invoices to City more than once each month.
	C. For Unscheduled Services provided where the City requests Service be performed at least twenty-four (24) hour of its request, the City shall pay the Contractor at a rate of Ninety dollars ($90.00) per hour.  For Unscheduled Services provided in an ...
	D. Contractor may request an increase in rates based upon substantial increase in operating costs; i.e. wages, insurance, equipment maintenance, fuel, etc.  The City Council may amend the Contract and grant such an increase in an amount that it deems ...

	SECTION  V.
	TERM OF CONTRACT
	A. This Contract shall be effective on July 15, 2016, and will continue in effect for three years or until terminated as provided in this Contract. The City, at its sole discretion, may extend the term of the contract by one year term(s).

	SECTION  VI.
	STATUS OF CONTRACTOR
	A. Contractor shall enter into this Contract, and remain throughout the term of the Contract, as an independent contractor.  Contractor agrees that it is not and will not become an employee, partner, agent, or principal of City while the Contract is i...
	B. Contractor is responsible for providing, at his own expense, disability, unemployment, and other insurance, workers’ compensation, training, permits and licenses for itself and for its employees and subcontractors.  Contractor agrees to hold harmle...
	C. Contractor is responsible for paying all income taxes, including estimated taxes, incurred as a result of the compensation paid by City to Contractor pursuant to the Contract.  Contractor agrees to indemnify City for any claims, costs, losses, fees...
	D. Contractor may, at Contractor’s own expense, use any employees or subcontractors as Contractor deems necessary to perform the Services.  City may control, direct, or supervise those situations where the City deems it necessary for the purpose of en...

	SECTION  VII.
	INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY
	A. Contractor agrees to maintain an insurance policy with a minimum coverage amount of $1,000,000.00 to cover negligent acts or omissions committed by Contractor, its employees, subcontractors, or agents during the performance of any duties under this...
	B. Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold City free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, losses, costs, expenses, obligations, liabilities, damages, recoveries, and deficiencies, including interest, penalties, attorneys’ fees, and ...

	SECTION  VIII.  TERMINATION OF CONTRACT
	A. Termination on Notice Without Cause.  This Contract may be terminated by the City without cause upon thirty-day (30) advance written notice to the Contractor, or by the Contractor upon ninety-day (90) advance written notice to the City.
	B.  Termination on Occurrence of Stated Events.  This Contract will terminate automatically on the occurrence of any of the following events:
	1. Bankruptcy or insolvency of Contractor.
	2. Sale of the business of Contractor.
	3. Assignment of this Contract by either Party without the consent of the other.

	C. Termination for Default.  If either Party defaults in the performance of this Contract or materially breaches any of its provisions, the non-breaching Party may terminate this Contract by giving written notification to the breaching Party.  Termina...
	1. City’s failure to pay Contractor any compensation due within thirty (30) days, after written demand for payment.
	2. Contractor’s failure to complete the Services specified in this Contract.


	SECTION  IX.  NOTICES
	A. Any notices required by this Contract shall be made by either personal delivery in writing or by U.S. first class mail postage prepaid. Notices delivered personally will be deemed communicated as of actual receipt.  Mailed notices will be deemed co...
	CITY

	SECTION  X.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	A. Contractor’s Qualifications.  Contractor represents that it has the qualifications and skills necessary to perform the Services under this Contract in a competent, professional manner, without the advice or direction of City. This means Contractor ...
	B.  Assignment.  Neither this Contract, nor any duties or obligations under this Contract, may be assigned by Contractor without the prior written consent of City.
	C.  Prevailing Wages.  Contractor will comply with the requirements of Labor Code Section 1720 et seq. and pay its employees prevailing wages for Services provided pursuant to this Contract.
	D. Entire Contract of the Parties.  This Contract supersedes any and all contracts, either oral or written, between the parties with respect to the rendering of Services by Contractor to City and contains all representations, covenants, and contracts ...
	E. Partial Invalidity.  If any provision of this Contract is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will continue in full force and effect without being impaired or invalidated in any ...
	F. Arbitration.  Any controversy between the City and the Contractor involving the construction or application of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract will, on the written request of one Party served on the other, be submitted t...
	G. Attorneys’ Fees. If any legal action is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Contract, the prevailing Party is entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees, which may be set by the court in the same action or in a separate action brough...
	H. Governing Law.  This Contract will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, on the date this Contract was executed.
	I. It is expressly understood and agreed that a waiver of any of the conditions or covenants of this Contract shall not be considered a waiver of any of the other provisions hereof.

	SECTION  XI.

	7.1 P & R Minutes 7-12-16
	MINUTES
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken):
	2. PRESENTATIONS: NONE.
	3. UNFINISHED BUISNESS:  NONE.
	4. NEW BUSINESS:
	4.1: Approve the minutes of June 14, 2016
	The June 14, 2016 Meeting Minutes were approved as amended.  THOMAS/PICINICH (3-0) motion to approve Item 4.1 as amended.
	4.2: Accept the donation of a Park Bench.
	Director French provided the report on this item. PICINICH/HOUSE (3-0) motion to accept the donation of a Park Bench.
	5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:   NONE.
	6. INFORMATION ITEMS:    NONE.
	7. COMMENTS:


	City of Hughson
	Parks & Recreation Commission Meeting
	City Hall Council Chambers
	City Hall Annex Building


